

THE UNIVERSITY OF WINNIPEG STUDENTS' ASSOCIATION

Open Session Package

April 26, 2023

Meeting of the UWSA Board of Directors

This package contains minutes and motions duly submitted to the Chair of the UWSA Board of Directors

Table of Contents

- Page 3 Open Session Minutes of the January 18, 2023 Meeting of the UWSA Board of Directors
- Page 49 Open Session Minutes of the January 31, 2023 Meeting of the UWSA Executive Committee
- Page 52 Open Session Minutes of the February 7, 2023 Meeting of the UWSA Executive Committee
- Page 55 Open Session Minutes of the January 26, 2023 Meeting of the Student Senate Caucus
- Page 56 Open Session Minutes of the February 24, 2023 Meeting of the Student Senate Caucus
- Page 57 Open Session Minutes of the April 3, 2023 Meeting of the UWSA Executive Committee
- Page 59 Open Session Minutes of the April 18, 2023 Meeting of the Student Indigenous Advisory Circle
- Page 60 Motion of Support for Transgender Students on Campus

Board in Attendance:

Chair of the Board: Carter Wiens Secretary of the Board: Emmanuel Oladele President: Kiratveer (Kirt) Singh Hayer Vice-President External Affairs: Jonathan Henderson Arts Director: Umar Awan Business and Economics Director: Jaspinder Kaur Dhillon **Recreation & Athletics Co-Director: Vandan Khunt** Science Director: Kaynat Grewal Student Living Director: Vlad Samon International Students Co-Director: Tomiris Kaliyeva **Board Absent:** Vice-President Student Affairs: Reza Saker Hossain Community Liaison Director: Sarah Anderson Emerging Leader Co-Director (2-year term): Shubhdeep Kaur Emerging Leader Director (2nd Year): Faith Marcial Racialized Student Co-Director: Oyin Akinboye Part-Time/Mature Students' Director: Clifford Stornel International Students' Co-Director: Christine Quiah Indigenous Student Association Director: Gracie Grift Guest:

Benjamin Ogundale (Student)

Staff in Attendance:

Thomas Hanan - General Manager Tom Sidebottom, Chief Operating Officer Ted Turner, Special Projects Manager Omowunmi Williams – Administrative Assistant Olayemi Olaleye – Chief Financial Officer

Open Session

1. Call to Order

The regular monthly meeting of the University of Winnipeg Students' Association Board of Directors was held on Wednesday 18th January 2023 via a virtual meeting due to the COVID-19 pandemic. The Chair called the meeting to order at 5:45 p.m. Following the confirmation of quorum, the house continued to the agenda.

2. Introduction Circle

Carter W. led the circle with the directors in attendance

3. Approval of the Order of Business

Kirt H. adds Director Resignation and Financial Statements

Jonathan H. adds Indigenous graduation powwow

Kirt H. moves to approve order of business

Motion Carries

- 4. Special Business
 - a. Resignation of director

Kirt H. reads out resignation of Emerging Leader Director, Amanpreet Singh Gill:

Dear Board,

I am writing to inform you that I am resigning from my position as Emerging Leader Director (2-year term). I have decided that it is the best decision for me as well as for UWSA.

The reason why I am resigning is that my studies are complete, and I graduated in last semester. I won't be going to university and meeting students so I think its good if other student takes this position. I have greatly appreciated the opportunity to serve as a student leader and to work with the dedicated members of the UWSA. I have learned a great deal from my time in this role, and I am grateful for the experiences and connections I have made.

I would like to thank the members UWSA for their support and guidance during my tenure. I am confident that the organization will continue to thrive and make a positive impact on the student body. Thank you for your understanding.

Sincerely,

Amanpreet Singh Gill

Kirt H. moves to approve Amanpreet Singh Gill's resignation. Motion carries

- b. Financial Statements
- c. Indigenous Graduation Powwow

Jonathan H. says the event will be in person this year, and is hoping the board would be willing to contribute. Kirt H. comments that he thinks it is a great initiative.

Jonathan H. moves the motion for UWSA to donate \$1,000 towards the

Indigenous Graduation Powwow.

Motion Carries

- 5. Consent Agenda
 - a) Reports i) Executive reports
- Kirt H.- He attended all the 3 days of Snowed In. He has been involved in election campaigns. He attended a meeting to bring the sport of cricket into the University. He has been meeting with the Students' Association from other post-secondary institutions

in Manitoba. The MAAPS team will be visiting campus and there will be a letter writing booth. He attended Downtown Safety Community Partnership meeting to ensure people living or visiting downtown are safe. He met with the Philosophy Students Association. He attended the University of Winnipeg Rooter Act meeting. He participated in the UWSA By-Law and Policy meeting and Executive meeting. He advocated that the Duckworth center's locker room is more accommodating. Discussed creating new executive positions. Met with UW Administration. Kirt. H discloses that they volunteered as treasurer of the group, Rotartact Club.

- Jonathan H.- He attended Downtown Safety Community Partnership meeting. He attended the Wesmen basketball game. He has been advocating for cleaner water in Winnipeg. Vlad brought the idea of having an athletic competition. The Unsheltered initiative will be held on February 3. He has met with the Chamber of Commerce for funding. He had an interview with the Winnipeg Free Press concerning downtown safety. The Elder at the University said that the UWSA was sometime gifted with a drum. The date the drum was gifted is unknown. He has been working with Manitoba Chiefs to provide funding for students who want to attend ceremonies outside their studies.
 ii) Director reports
- Tomiris K.– Looking to start an international student. Tried to attend the SLC meeting. Asking people for their opinion on the lounges. Christine organized a movie night.
- Farthma M.– Campus life and general questions and been talking to students. On Feb 2nd grad students organized a trip to Assiniboine park.
- Farwa A. When to the Winnipeg rotary Act meeting, new social media manager. Been interacting with students.
- Soban F.– Got a conversation with sustainability, looking to change applications to virtual with accessibility options. As one of the greenest cafeterias in Canada we still need some changes. Trying to reduce paper waste.
- Jaspinder D. Pass
- Umar A.– Kirt H. and Umar A. handed out mugs in Riddle Hall, Met with executive committee for budget and promotional items. Attended Snowed In.
- Vandan K.– did not do much the past month, interacted with students, shared about the UWSA.

- Vlad S. Not a super dense month, Students want to see with their eyes the UWSA and want a tour. Met with Jonathan H. and had productive ideas for the organization. Students often don't know about the right to visit gym for free. Participating in Job fair tomorrow. Attended a workshop on Russian Propaganda.
- Brie V. Last meeting been communicating, and a big thing is they have been campaigning for a trans-neutral environment across the campus. they want the University of Winnipeg to be in this year's pride parade. Uwinnipeg systems for being deadnamed, and pronouns. No gender-neutral change room, or bathrooms nearby. Meeting next week with UWSA members, president, and General Manager T. Hanan. Looking at UWinnipeg being in the pride parade.
- David D. Primary activity has been engaging with students in pace in their classes. Whatever ideas they have, they stopped in 4 classrooms to engage with students.

b) Minutes

- i. BOD 221207 OPEN
- ii. B&P 221206 OPEN
- iii. B&P 221221 OPEN
- iv. B&P 230104 OPEN
- v. F&O 221207 OPEN
- vi. CERC 230112 OPEN
- vii. EXEC 230112 OPEN

Tomiris K. moves the motion to approve the consent agenda

Motion Carries

6. Communications

- 7. New Business
- a. Election Reform By-Law Package for approval

Kirt H. speaks to this – wants to reintroduce slates so people can run together, it can be beneficial for Executives to feel comfortable working together. Sometimes been concerns in the past, but this allows people to work together. Candidates be given the option to create their own campaign materials.

Tomiris K.– agrees that it is a positive change

Soban F.- it would be an additional week to prepare.

Jonathan H.– Agrees with bringing back slates and can help. Jonathan H. will be on the last 2years term and did like that to bring continuity to the organization but he is in Favour.

Kirt H. moves the motion to approve the following By-Law and Policy Election Reform Package:

Section A – Definitions

5.1 ACT

Stands for All-Candidates Training and Campaign Preparation and indicates Weeks 3 and 4 of a given election cycle.

5.2 By-Election

Means an election held in the fall-term of the University of Winnipeg's academic year. In a by-election, seats unfilled in the previous General Election are open to nominees.

5.3 Campus

Shall include the following buildings: Buhler, Education building at 480 Portage, Menno Simons College, Richardson College, Axworthy RecPlex, Duckworth, Asper Centre for Theatre and Film, Helen Betty Osborne Campus, Lockhart, Centennial, Manitoba, Bulman Student Centre, Ashdown, Wesley, Bryce, Sparling, Graham, McFeetors Hall, Balmoral Houses, Lions Manor, 527 Selkirk Avenue and Merchants Corner, and extend to include the Main Campus front lawn, the Spence Street Promenade, and the quad area.

5.4 Campaign

Means any act by, or on behalf of, an election campaign participant that can reasonably be interpreted as calculated to gain support for the vote including, but not limited to:

- a. Talking to individuals or groups of students;
- b. Presenting in front of a classroom;
- c. Handing out campaign materials;

- d. Making posts on social media;
- e. Any other communication about a candidate, platform, the UWSA, or the election campaign.

5.5 Campaign Materials

Means posters, handbills, pamphlets, ribbons, buttons, banners, and any other physical or digital material produced to support or oppose a candidate or referendum.

5.6 Campaign Opportunities

Means any promotional engagement for candidates targeted at classrooms, student groups, or any group of ten (10) or more students, table bookings or campaign displays (not including posters or banners), debates, forums, and any other publicly promoted engagements.

5.7 Candidate

Means any member of the UWSA whose nomination for election is accepted under procedures established by these by-laws.

5.8 Chief Elections Commissioner - CEC

The CEC acts on behalf of the UWSA Membership to carry out the electoral logistics of all UWSA elections and referenda.

5.9 Election Accountability Board - EAB

The EAB acts on behalf of the UWSA membership to support the CEC and ECFs in the management of a fair and transparent election and referenda process.

5.10 Election Cycle

Means the period in which an election and/or referendum takes place, starting at the opening of nominations and closing of the polls. upon ratification of the results.

5.11 Election Campaign Facilitator - ECF

The ECFs act on behalf of the UWSA Membership to support electoral candidates and volunteers through the elections process, to facilitate the collaborative creation of the UWSA Election Campaign, and to mediate conflicts that arise throughout the electoral process.

5.12 Election Campaign Participant

Means all accepted approved candidates and referendum volunteers participating in a given election cycle.

5.13 Election Rules

Means UWSA By-law 5 Elections and Referenda; UWSA Policy Article 14 Elections and Referenda; and any Supplementary Rules approved for a given election cycle.

5.14 Final Election Report

The report issued at the close of each election cycle which includes reports from the CEC, ECFs, and EAB.

5.15 General Election

Means an election held in the winter-term of the University of Winnipeg's academic year.

5.16 Nominee

Means any member of the UWSA who is submitting themselves for nomination for election or referendum volunteer under the procedures established by these by-laws.

5.17 Referendum

A question put to a balloted vote of the membership during the course of an election cycle.

5.18 Referendum Volunteer

Means any member of the UWSA whose nomination for referendum volunteer is accepted under procedures established by these by-laws.

5.19 Scrutineer

Means any member of the UWSA approved to support a candidate campaign and/or oversee the ballot count on behalf of an election campaign participant.

5.20 Slate

Means two (2) or more candidates who are members of a single campaign, each running for a different position. Slates are prohibited under the UWSA by-laws.

5.21 Spoiled Ballot

Means a ballot where no clear intention can be discerned. Only the CEC may rule a ballot spoiled.

5.22 Supplementary Rules

Means additional rules to those in the Elections By-Laws and Polices that are created by the CEC and/or ECF and approved by the EAB to guide election campaign participants through a particular election.

5.23 UWSA Election Campaign

Means the campaign under which all election campaign participants run for election or as a referendum volunteer. The UWSA Election Campaign includes all campaign materials approved in a given election cycle.

Section B – Election Management Team

5.24 Chief Elections Commissioner (CEC)

- i. The CEC's term shall commence upon appointment of the Board of Directors and shall expire on April 30th of the same academic year. The term shall be renewed annually unless the CEC is otherwise notified by the Chief Operating Officer.
- ii. The CEC works alongside the Election Campaign Facilitators (ECFs) and is accountable to the Election Accountability Board (EAB). Questions, concerns, and complaints arising from any CEC interpretation of the By-Laws may be directed to the chair of the EAB.
- iii. The CEC liaises with UWSA staff to prepare and implement election logistics, candidate training, and the UWSA Election Campaign; however, the CEC reports directly to the EAB and the Board of Directors and does not take instruction or direction from staff.
- iv. The CEC shall receive training and orientation from the Chief Operating Officer, the General Manager, and the Events and Communications Department before the beginning of the election cycle for which they have been hired.
- v. The CEC may be dismissed from their position upon a majority vote of the EAB. Upon receiving notice from the EAB that it has voted to remove a CEC for conduct which they deem warranted for such dismissal, a CEC may be dismissed from their position with a two-thirds (²/₃) vote of the Board of Directors.

5.25 Chief Elections Commissioner Powers and Duties

- i. The CEC shall run elections safely, fairly, and in accordance with UWSA by-laws and policies.
- ii. The CEC shall work with the Administration Department to manage election logistics, including, but not limited to nominations, polling, and the ballot count.
- iii. The CEC shall oversee election logistics, including, but not limited to:
 - a. Managing the candidate and referendum volunteer nomination processes, including:
 - 1. Working with the ECFs and the UWSA Communications Department to create nomination forms and approving all forms before circulation;
 - 2. Ensuring that nomination forms are available by the deadlines ascribed in these by-laws;
 - 3. Ensuring that the nomination forms are clear, accessible, and collect all information required to assess candidate eligibility as stipulated in these by laws and The Corporations Act (Manitoba) if applicable;
 - 4. Arranging and promoting drop-off details for candidates to submit nominations;

- 5. Being reasonably available to answer eligibility questions of potential nominees;
- 6. Ensuring the availability of nomination forms in accessible formats and assisting students with filling out nomination forms if requested;
- 7. Verifying the eligibility credentials of all nominees and announcing all verified election candidates and referendum volunteers to the ECFs and the membership in accordance with these by-laws.
- b. Arranging all poll and voting logistics, including:
 - 1. Working with the UWSA Communications Department to develop the ballot for paper and/or digital polling and approving all ballots before circulation.
 - 2. Organizing any physical polls, including:
 - i. Being present at the opening and closing of the polls each day of the voting period;
 - ii. Situating polls on campus in accordance with these by-laws;
 - iii. Ensuring polls have the equipment needed to run a fair and confidential vote;
 - iv. Ensuring polls are properly staffed in accordance with these by-laws;
 - v. Ensuring that clear voting instructions are posted at all polls;
 - vi. Ensuring poll officers are trained on providing accessibility accommodations to voters, and
 - vii. Responding to student issues or concerns with the physical polls.
 - 3. Organizing any digital polls, including:
 - i. Working with the UWSA Administration and Communications Departments to administer the voting software backend,
 - ii. Ensuring that the student list is securely and accurately uploaded,
 - iii. Ensuring that clear voting instructions are included on the digital ballot,
 - iv. Ensuring that online polls open and close at the correct times, in accordance with these by laws, and
 - v. Responding to student issues or concerns with the voting software.
 - 4. Appointing, training, and supervising all polling officers.
 - 5. Ensuring the security of all ballots and ballot boxes.
- c. Overseeing all ballot count logistics, and ensuring that a fair, accurate, and cost-effective ballot count occurs.
- iv. The CEC shall work with the UWSA Communications Department-and the Election Campaign Facilitators to arrange promotion of election information, including but

not limited to: information on qualifications for election, nominations, referenda registration, deadlines, poll hours and locations, digital polling access, and voting instructions.

- v. The CEC shall work with the ECFs under the guidance of the EAB to ensure that members of the UWSA Board of Directors and UWSA staff do not use their positions or UWSA resources to campaign to an unfair advantage either "for" or "against" a candidate or referendum.
- vi. The CEC shall post and implement supplementary nominations and polling rules, subject to the approval of the EAB.
- vii. The CEC shall work with the UWSA Communications Department to notify the membership of the official results of the election and/or referenda and ensure that notifications are made public within the timelines ascribed by these by-laws.
- viii. The CEC shall organize and facilitate the All-Candidate's Training and Campaign Preparation Weeks, safely, fairly, and in accordance with these by-laws.
- ix. The CEC shall work with election participants to ensure that the elections process is equally accessible to all participants.
- x. The CEC shall organize campaign opportunities.
- xi. The CEC shall post and implement Supplementary Campaign Rules, subject to the approval of the EAB.
- xii. The CEC shall keep regular office hours and give notification to election participants of these hours no later than the Monday of Week 5 at 8 a.m.
- xiii. The CEC shall ensure fair and equal access to all campaign resources provided by the UWSA Election Campaign.
- xiv. The CEC shall hear concerns and complaints from candidates, volunteers, and the student membership and shall work to resolve issues through mediation before escalating them to the EAB in accordance with relevant UWSA Policy.
- xv. The CEC shall bring any complaint which cannot be resolved through mediation to the EAB for consideration and ruling in accordance with relevant UWSA Policy.
- xvi. The CEC shall submit to the UWSA Board of Directors, at the first board meeting or general meeting where the following the ratification of the election results-are ratified, a final report of activities and recommendations in accordance with the Final Election Report By-laws.

5.26 Election Campaign Facilitators (ECFs)

- i. The ECFs term shall commence upon appointment of the Board of Directors and shall expire upon the delivery of the Final Election Report for the given election cycle.
- ii. The ECFs work alongside the CEC and are accountable to the Election Accountability Board (EAB). Questions, concerns, and complaints arising from any ECF interpretation of the By Laws may be directed to the Chair of the EAB.

- iii. The ECFs liaise with UWSA staff to prepare and implement UWSA Election Campaign logistics, however, the ECFs report directly to the EAB and the Board of Directors and do not take instruction or direction from staff.
- iv. The ECFs shall receive training and orientation from the Chief Operating Officer, the General Manager, and the Events and Communications Department, before the beginning of the election cycle for which they have been hired.
- v. Upon receiving notice from the EAB that it has voted to remove an ECF for conduct which they deem warranted for such dismissal, an ECF may be dismissed from their position with a two-thirds (²/₃) vote of the Board of Directors.

5.27 Election Campaign Facilitators Powers and Duties

- i. The Election Campaign Facilitators shall organize and facilitate the All Candidate's Training and Campaign Preparation Week, safely, fairly, and in accordance with these by-laws, including:
 - a. Arranging sessions including, but not limited to:
 - 1. Collaborative governance;
 - 2. UWSA mission and vision, internal structure and operations, UWSA Ambassadorship Policies, and election rules;
 - 3. Non-profit board regulations, duties and privileges;
 - 4. How to campaign; and
 - 5. Conflict mediation and resolution.
 - b. Scheduling UWSA staff and external partners to facilitate sessions relevant to their expertise.
 - c. Facilitating the creation of the UWSA Election Campaign through the collaboration of all electoral candidates and referendum volunteers.
 - d. Working in coordination with the Communications Department, the Chief Election Commissioner, and all election candidates and referendum volunteers to arrange promotion of the UWSA Election Campaign.
- ii. The ECFs shall work with election participants to ensure that the elections process is equally accessible to all participants.
- iii. The ECFs shall organize campaign opportunities for candidates and volunteers including debates, forums, classroom presentations, meetings with student groups, and any other campaign opportunity targeting ten (10) or more voting members.
- iv. The ECFs shall post and implement Supplementary Campaign Rules, subject to the approval of the EAB.
- v. The ECFs shall keep regular office hours and give notification to candidates and volunteers of these hours no later than the Monday of Week 4 at 8 a.m.
- vi. The ECFs shall ensure fair and equal access to all campaign resources provided by the UWSA Election Campaign.
- vii. The ECFs shall hear concerns and complaints from candidates, volunteers, and the student membership and shall work to resolve issues through mediation before escalating them to the EAB in accordance with relevant UWSA Policy.

- viii. The ECFs shall bring any complaint which cannot be resolved through mediation to the EAB for consideration and ruling in accordance with relevant UWSA Policy.
- ix. The ECFs shall work with the CEC under the guidance of the EAB to ensure that members of the UWSA Board of Directors and UWSA staff do not use their positions or UWSA resources to campaign to an unfair advantage either "for" or "against" a candidate or referendum.
- x. The ECFs shall submit to the UWSA Board of Directors, at the first board meeting or general meeting where the election results are ratified, a final report of activities and recommendations in accordance with the Final Election Report By laws.

5.28 Chief Election Commissioner and Election Campaign Facilitators Selections and Hiring

- i. Selection
 - a. The CEC and ECFs shall be hired in accordance with UWSA hiring policies and ratified by the Election Accountability Board. ratified by the Board of Directors

b. In addition to regular public postings for the ECF positions, the Chief Operating Officer shall actively recruit consulting professionals to apply.

- ii. Applications from the following people shall not be considered for either the CEC-or ECF:
 - a. Current Directors and Executive Directors of the UWSA;
 - b. Former Executive Directors of the UWSA whose term ended within the last five (5) years;
 - c. Current Part-Time or Full-Time Employees of the UWSA;
 - d. Current UWSA Service Centre Coordinators;
 - e. Employees of any UWSA partner organization.

5.29 Chief Election Commissioner and Election Campaign Facilitators Training, Orientation, and Support

- i. The Chief Operating Officer shall be the UWSA Election Staff Liaison and shall be responsible for coordinating with the EAB and relevant UWSA departments to provide training and orientation for the incoming CEC and ECFs.
- ii. CEC and ECF training shall include, but is not limited to:
 - a. By-law and policy review;
 - b. Access to the Election Report archive and review of past practices;
 - c. Communication strategies and practices;
 - d. Orientation with the EAB.
- iii. The CEC and ECFs shall be supported by UWSA staff in the implementation of election processes as determined by these by-laws.
- iv. The CEC and ECFs may request additional support from UWSA staff subject to the review and approval of the EAB.

Section C – Election and Referenda Guidelines and Procedures

5.30 Annual General Election and By-Election

- i. In the winter term of each University of Winnipeg academic year there will be a General Election for available UWSA Executive and Director positions, University of Winnipeg Senate seats, and University of Winnipeg Board of Regents seats.
- ii. One (1) seat on the University of Winnipeg Board of Regents will be open for election annually.
- iii. The number of University of Winnipeg Senate seats open for election annually shall be determined in consultation with the University Secretary and in accordance with the University of Winnipeg Act.
 - a. One UWSA Senate seat shall be reserved for each of the following:
 - 1. The UWSA President;
 - 2. The Vice President External Affairs;
 - 3. The Vice President Student Affairs;
 - 4. The PACE Director;
 - 5. A Graduate Student.
- iv. The Vice President External Affairs and Vice President Student Affairs shall be elected on a two-year schedule such that the Vice President External Affairs is elected in Cycle A and the Vice President Student Affairs is elected in Cycle B.
- v. The Emerging Leader Directors shall be elected on a two-year schedule where two (2) of the four (4) positions are open for election in each cycle.
- vi. The two-year schedule shall be as follows:
 - a. Cycle A (which shall be the first year in each two-year General Election schedule) the following directors shall be elected for two-year terms:
 - 1. Vice President External Affairs
 - 2. Two (2) Emerging Leader Directors
 - b. Cycle B (which shall be the second year in each two-year General Election schedule) the following directors shall be elected for two-year terms:
 - 1. Vice President Student Affairs
 - 2. Two (2) Emerging Leader Directors
 - c. In both Cycle A and Cycle B, all other executive and directors excepting those identified in By-law 4.2.i shall be elected to one-year terms.
 - d. In the pilot year of the two-year General Election schedule, Cycle A candidates shall be elected for one-year terms and Cycle B candidates shall be elected for two-year terms.
 - e. Where a position is unfilled in a General Election or By-Election, or is vacated before the expiration of its term, it shall be open for election in the subsequent General Election or By-Election. The duration of the term of the person elected to fill such a vacancy shall be the balance of the unexpired term such that the filled position's term shall terminate in the standard timeline if the position had not been vacated.

- vii. By-Elections shall be held in the event of vacancies in the Fall Term.
- viii. Participation in elections and referenda as committee members, candidates, volunteers, and scrutineers is limited to members of the UWSA as determined by these by-laws. Members must be 18 years of age or older to participate in UWSA elections.

5.31 Election Cycle

- i. Unless otherwise determined by the board of directors, the election cycle shall run on a five (5) six (6) week cycle, with Week 3 4 coinciding with the reading week occurring in the winter term.
- ii. The election cycle shall commence at 9:00 a.m. on Monday of Week 1 and end at 6:00 p.m. on Wednesday of Week-5 6.
 - a. Week 1 and Week 2 shall be Nominations and Referendum Volunteer Registration Weeks.
 - b. Week 3 and 4 shall be the All Candidates' Training and Campaign Preparation Weeks (ACT Weeks).
 - c. Week-4 5 shall be the Campaign Week.
 - d. Week-56 shall be Campaign and Voting Week.
- iii. No day of an election cycle shall fall between April 1 and September 1 of any given year.

5.32 Referenda

- i. Referenda can occur during either the General Election or By-Election. All clauses in these by-laws referring to the 5 6 Week election cycle shall apply to the referenda.
- ii. Referenda must be triggered prior to the commencement of the election cycle. Referenda may be triggered by either a vote by the Board of Directors or a petition of the membership.
- iii. A referendum question must be a positively worded motion to which voters answer YES or NO.
- iv. Motion for referendum from the UWSA Board of Directors must:
 - a. Clearly state the exact wording of the referendum question;
 - b. Be passed by a two-thirds (²/₃) majority.
- v. Petition for referendum must:
 - a. Clearly state the exact wording of the referendum question;
 - b. Include the signatory name, signature, and student number of 5% of the UWSA membership;
 - c. Be submitted to the Chair of the Board of Directors by or before 11:59 p.m. the last Friday prior to the commencement of the given election cycle.

5.33 Nominations (Week 1 and 2)

i. Nomination and referendum volunteer forms shall be available in the UWSA Office, the CEC Office, and online at the UWSA website.

- ii. A separate nomination form shall be available for each:
 - a. Executive Director Nominations;
 - b. Director Nominations;
 - c. Referendum Volunteer Nominations.
- iii. Election candidate nominations may only be submitted on the official nomination form and must include:
 - a. The nominee's name, UWinnipeg student ID number, date of birth, and contact information as requested;
 - b. The nominee's signed confirmation that they do not currently hold the status of bankruptcy;
 - c. The nominee's signed confirmation of their citizenship, residency, or immigration status;
 - d. A copy of the nominee's academic transcript demonstrating that they meet the eligibility requirements of the position for which they are nominated, as per these By-Laws;
 - e. The nominee's availability for Weeks 3, 4, and 5, and 6 of the Election Cycle.
- iv. Referendum volunteer nominations may only be submitted on the official nomination form and must include:
 - a. The side of the referendum question for which they are registering (YES or NO).
 - b. The nominee's name, UWinnipeg student ID number, date of birth, and contact information as requested;
 - c. A copy of the nominee's academic transcript demonstrating that they are a member of the UWSA.
 - d. The nominee's availability for Weeks 3, 4, and 5, and 6 of the Election Cycle.
- v. Nomination forms which are incorrect, incomplete, or inaccurate will be ruled invalid. Nominees shall have a 48-hour window to correct their nomination information upon receiving notification from the CEC that their nomination has been ruled invalid.
- vi. Nomination forms submission requirements shall be detailed on the nomination form and on the UWSA website. must be submitted to the CEC directly, via email to the CEC's UWSA email address, or in a drop-off location designated by the CEC (notice of which must be posted on the door of the CEC UWSA General Office). Nomination forms shall not be accepted at the UWSA General Office or by any UWSA staff person.
- vii. All nomination forms must be submitted according to the submission requirements detailed on the nomination form received by the CEC by 6:00 p.m. on the Thursday of Week 2.
- viii. On Friday of Week 2, the CEC shall send an email to all election participants including:
 - a. Confirmation of their nomination,
 - b. A list of all approved candidates and the position for which they are running,

- c. A list of all referenda side volunteers and the side which they're representing,
- d. Confirmation of the All-Candidate's Training and Campaign Preparation (ACT) schedule,
- e. Training documents in advance of ACT.
- 5.34 All Candidates' Meeting and All Candidates' Training and Campaign Preparation (ACT Weeks) (Weeks 4 & 5) (Week 3)
 - i. At 12:30 p.m. on Friday of Week 2, there shall be an All Candidates' Meeting where the CEC shall:
 - a. Serve notification to the membership of the names of all accepted candidates, whether those candidates are running for Executive or Director positions, the names of all accepted referendum volunteers, and the side which all those volunteers are supporting. The candidates and volunteers announced at the All Candidates' Meeting shall make up the election campaign participants.
 - ii. At the All Candidates' Meeting, the Election Campaign Facilitators shall be introduced to all election campaign participants and shall announce the All Candidates' Training and Campaign Preparation Week (Week 3) schedule.
- iii. All election campaign participants shall be required to attend the Week 3 ACT sessions scheduled by the CEC ECFs.
- iv. Training and campaign preparation sessions shall be planned by the CEC ECFs in accordance with these by-laws and with support from UWSA staff.
- v. Week 3 sessions shall include, but are not limited to, sessions on:
 - a. Collaborative governance;
 - b. UWSA mission and vision, internal structure and operations, UWSA Ambassadorship Policies, and non-profit board regulations, duties and privileges;
 - c. Election rules;
 - d. How to campaign; and
 - e. Conflict mediation and resolution.
- vi. During ACT Weeks Week 3, the CEC ECFs shall facilitate the collaboration of all election campaign participants in the creation of the UWSA Election Campaign.
- vii. At the commencement of UWSA Election Campaign planning, candidates shall announce the position for which they are running.
- viii. Candidates may amend the position for which they are running, subject to confirmation of their eligibility, join in a co-directorship bid with another election campaign participant, or withdraw from candidacy, until 9:00 a.m. on the Friday of Week 3.

5.35 Campaign Guidelines

- i. All statements, promotions, materials and any other communication by or on behalf of the UWSA, the UWSA Election Campaign, and election campaign participants must abide by the following guidelines:
 - a. They must be factually correct;
 - b. They must be honest and made in good faith;
 - c. They may not contain libel or slander (based on consultation with legal counsel if necessary);
 - d. They must abide by the UWSA Code of Conduct, the Positive Space Policy, and all other UWSA by-laws and policies;
 - e. They must abide by all federal, provincial, and municipal laws;
 - f. They must abide by all University of Winnipeg policy and procedure, including the *Respectful Work and Learning Environment Policy*.
- ii. Election campaign participants who fail to follow the campaign guidelines are subject to consequences as determined by the Election Accountability Board and in accordance with the Election Complaints Policy and Election-and Anti-Harassment Policy.

5.36 Campaigning (Weeks 5 and 6 4 and 5)

- i. Campaigning is any act by, or on behalf of, an election campaign participant that can reasonably be interpreted as calculated to gain support for the vote including, but not limited to:
 - a. Talking to individuals or groups of students;
 - b. Presenting in front of a classroom;
 - c. Handing out campaign materials;
 - d. Making posts on social media;
 - e. Any other communication about a candidate, platform, the UWSA, or the election campaign.
- ii. Campaigning shall begin at 8:00 a.m. on Monday of Week-4 5.
- Campaigning prior to 8:00 a.m. on Monday of Week-4 5 is prohibited. shall be considered a violation of these by-laws subject to consequences in accordance with the Election Complaints Policy.
- iv. Election campaign participants must at all times abide by the campaign guidelines.
- v. Campaigning (including the posting of signs and other materials) may not occur within 10 meters of a polling station. The CEC will create a visible marker of these boundaries. The perimeter may not be appealed to the EAB.
 - a. When a poll station is in operation outside the Riddell Hall Cafeteria, no campaigning will be permitted on the Lobby level of the Riddell Atrium, except for that done within the cafeteria.
- vi. Campaigning may occur on social media, on campus (see definitions) up to the public sidewalk and on the Selkirk Avenue Campus and Merchants Corner.

- a. Campaigning may not occur at bus stops, in businesses (not including Diversity Foods), and between campuses on the downtown campus.
- b. Campaigning may not occur in any classroom without the explicit consent of the instructor.
- c. Campaigning may not occur in the UWSA General Office or the office of any UWSA staff person; Infobooth; the Muslim Prayer Space; the Chapel; the Bulman MPR during Foodbank operations; and the Bike Lab. any UWSA Service Centre, including the Bike Lab, the BIPoC Lounge, the Rainbow Lounge, the Women Trans Spectrum Centre, or the Access Lounge.
- vii. No election campaign participant may campaign through a medium that could not be reasonably accessed equally by any other candidate including text messages, private phone calls, emails to individual members, or personal/professional websites.
 - a. Participants may respond to voter questions directed to them through private communications in cases where the voter initiated the contact.
- viii. Collusion between candidates for election will not be tolerated, including:
 - a. Promoting one or more candidates as part of an election slate;
 - b. Making statements that a reasonable person could interpret as linking two candidates as members of a joint slate for election;
 - c. Campaigning on behalf of another candidate.
- ix. Candidates for election may endorse referenda sides at their discretion.
- x. Harassing (as defined in the University of Winnipeg's *Respectful Working and Learning Environment Policy*) students or creating physical barriers in attempts to garner support will not be tolerated and will be grounds for immediate disciplinary action in accordance with the Election Anti-Harassment Policy.
- xi. Campaigning must shall cease at 6:00 p.m. on Wednesday of Week 5 6.

5.37 Campaign Opportunities

- i. Campaign opportunities shall be any promotional engagement for candidates targeted at classrooms, student groups, or any group of ten (10) or more students, table bookings or campaign displays (not including posters or banners), debates, forums, and any other publicly promoted engagements.
- ii. Campaign opportunities shall be collaboratively planned by all candidates during ACT. the All-Candidate's Campaign Preparation Week (Week 3).
- During Campaigning (Weeks 4 and 5), Candidates may independently arrange campaign opportunities additional to those developed collaboratively during ACT. Week 3. In these instances, candidates shall notify the ECFs and any other candidate contesting for the same position of the additionally planned campaign opportunities no less than 24 hours in advance of said opportunity.
- iv. During Campaigning (Weeks 4 and 5), the ECFs shall provide support by request to candidates who require additional guidance arranging campaign opportunities.

- v. Classroom presentations may only be made with instructor permission and must follow any restrictions imposed by the instructor within their classroom, subject to compliance with these by-laws.
- vi. The ECFs, in coordination with the UWSA Communications Department, shall arrange for the purchase of ad space in the Uniter to feature UWSA Election Campaign promotions and/or candidate bios.

5.38 Campaign Materials and the UWSA Election Campaign

i. All campaign materials shall be developed collaboratively centrally by the UWSA, through the UWSA Election Campaign.

ii. UWSA Election Campaign materials shall feature all candidates equally.

- iii. The UWSA Election Campaign shall fairly feature all candidate and referendum sides in equal proportion to any contesting campaign.
- iv. Co-directorship candidates shall jointly appear on all campaign materials created for their campaign.
- v. Candidates are prohibited from creating or distributing any campaign material not approved as UWSA Election Campaign materials.
- vi. The CEC ECFs shall not approve any materials that may damage University of Winnipeg infrastructure or create a physical obstruction.
- vii. The CEC ECFs shall not approve campaign materials that violate the campaign guidelines established in these by-laws.
- viii. UWSA Election Campaign materials must include voting information-including the dates and times of the polls, poll locations, and a digital voting summary approved by the CEC.
- ix. The CEC ECFs shall be responsible for coordinating with the UWSA Events and Communications Department for the hanging of all posters and banners. Participants are prohibited from hanging campaign materials.
- All election campaign participants shall have equal access to distributable campaign materials subject to the printing caps listed elsewhere in these by-laws.
 Distributable campaign materials shall be stored in a UWSA Election Campaign Office to which all election campaign participants have access for Weeks 3-5 of the given election cycle.
- xi. Posters
 - a. UWSA Election Campaign posters must adhere to the UWSA and University of Winnipeg poster policies.
 - b. Posters may be no larger than 11x17 inches each.

xii. Banners

- a. UWSA Election Campaign Banners shall be general voting promotions and shall not include specific candidate information.
- b. Banner sizes, locations, placement, and removal shall be negotiated with the University of Winnipeg Communications Offices and University of Winnipeg

Facilities by the CEC ECFs and the UWSA Events and Communications Department.

xiii. Distributable Campaign Materials

- a. The UWSA Election Campaign should be cognizant of the environmental impact of printing paper campaign materials. large quantities of handbills and shall adhere to the same sustainable printing regulations outlined in the UWSA Poster Policy. Campaigns shall be limited to the following caps on handbills:
 - 1. Candidates for Director, Senator, or Regent seats are entitled to 200 total handbills for a given election.
 - 2. Candidates for Executive Director seats and Referenda Sides are entitled to 500 total handbills for a given election.
- b. No handbill may exceed 4.25x5.5 inches.
- c. Handbills may not be affixed to any bulletin board, wall, or other surface.
- d. Font size may be no smaller than 12pt as recommended by the Canadian National Institute for the Blind.

5.39 Social Media

- i. Election campaign participants may campaign on their personal social media and/or create new social media accounts specific to their campaign. by sharing the UWSA Election Campaign materials and promoting their candidacy.
- ii. Social media posts must abide by the campaign guidelines found under By-law 5.35.
- iii. Social media posts are not considered campaign materials for the purposes of these by-laws.
- iv. Election campaign participants may not solicit votes via private messages on social media platforms but may respond to voter questions directed to them through private messages in cases where the voter initiated the contact.
- v. Candidates and volunteers Election participants are responsible for all posts on their social media and are encouraged to change the settings on their social media so that only they can post directly to their personal pages and accounts and to limit tagging and other features that may link outside content to their page.
 - a. Content not attributed to an election campaign participant but posted on their social media pages or accounts which violates the campaign guidelines must be removed immediately upon its discovery, immediately upon notification from the CEC ECFs, or within 24 hours of the posting of the content—whichever comes first. It is the responsibility of election campaign participants to thoroughly monitor their own social media pages and accounts.
- vi. Any campaigning on official UWSA or University of Winnipeg social media shall be coordinated by the CEC ECFs in consultation with the UWSA Communications Department.

- vii. Any campaigning on the social media of a UWSA student group shall be coordinated by the ECFs, with shall only occur with the explicit consent of that group.
- viii. Additional social media guidelines may be collaboratively designed by all election participants during Week 3 ACT and set as supplemental rules in accordance with these by-laws.

5.40 Voting and the Ballot (Week **5** 6)

- i. UWSA Members are entitled to one ballot per election.
- ii. Physical polling stations may use online electronic and/or paper ballots at the discretion of the CEC General Manager.
- iii. Where both paper and electronic ballots are used, paper ballot polling stations shall register voters through the online electronic polling software to ensure that each member receives only one ballot.
- iv. Ballots shall display the legal or preferred name of the candidate and the position for which they are running.
- v. Ballots may include additional information at the discretion of the General Manager.
- vi. Where a position is uncontested, a YES/NO ballot shall be used. Referenda shall use the same YES/NO format.
- vii. The UWSA Senate seat ballot shall be a cumulative vote in which voters may select multiple Senator candidates up-to the number of available seats as determined in accordance with these by-laws. Should there be more candidates than available seats, the candidates with the most votes shall win the election.
- viii. The Emerging Leader Director ballot shall be a cumulative vote in which voters may select multiple candidates up-to the number of available seats as determined in accordance with these by-laws. Should there be more candidates than available seats, the candidates with the most votes shall win the election.
- ix. A referendum is approved when 50% + 1 of voters support the question.
- x. A paper ballot's vote shall count when there is a clear indication of candidate preference. This may include, but is not limited to, a marked "X," "check mark," or written statement within the ballot's boundary for a single candidate.
- xi. Where a paper ballot's vote is ruled invalid for a particular candidate or candidates, that shall not necessarily rule its other votes invalid. All votes on a paper ballot where the candidate preference is clear shall be ruled valid.
- xii. Only the CEC may rule a ballot spoiled.

5.41 Tie-Breaker Procedure

By Monday of Week 5 The CEC shall score otherwise blank paper ballots such that contested races have one affirmative ballot per candidate, and uncontested races and referenda have one affirmative and one negative ballot. These ballots shall be stored individually in envelopes separated by position/question. In the event of a tie, the CEC shall select one envelope per tied race shall be selected at random and the vote inside shall be considered the deciding vote.

5.42 Paper Ballot Count

- i. The paper ballot count shall commence immediately following the close of the polls. on the Wednesday of Week 5.
- ii. The CEC shall arrange for polling officers to count the paper ballots and shall be present for the entire duration of the paper ballot count.
- iii. Online polling results shall be tabulated automatically and shall not be subject to recount.
- iv. Results of the paper ballot count shall be added to the online electronic polling results to determine the pending election results.

5.43 Ballot Recount

- i. A recount of the paper ballots may only be called where the difference in paper ballot votes between the two top candidates for that position is equal to or less than five percent (5%) of the total ballots cast for that position.
 - a. At their discretion, the CEC may allow for a recount where the difference in votes between the top two candidates is greater than five percent (5%) of the total ballots cast for that position, to accommodate cases where voter turnout or paper ballot usage is low.
 - b. At their discretion, the CEC may allow for a second recount only in the case that the candidate who won the initial ballot count loses the recount. There shall be no more than two recounts per position per election.
 - c. In the case of a recount where the tie-breaker procedure was utilized, the tiebreaker ballot shall be set aside and shall only be added to the recount tabulation if the recount again yields an equivalence of votes.
- ii. A recount of the ballots must be called by 12 p.m. on the Thursday of Week-5 6. A second recount must be called immediately following the first recount.
- iii. Paper ballots will shall be confidentially destroyed by the CEC immediately following the closing of the recount period and the completion of any outstanding recounts.
- iv. A copy of the electronic election report shall be downloaded and confidentially retained by the UWSA in accordance with the UWSA Privacy Policy.
- v. Electronic ballots shall not be eligible for recount.

5.44 Scrutineers

- i. Candidates for election and referendum volunteers are permitted two scrutineers each.
- ii. Scrutineers must submit their name, the candidate or volunteer they are representing, their contact information, and transcripts demonstrating their eligibility to the CEC by 6:00 p.m. Monday Thursday of Week-5 4.
- iii. Approved scrutineers shall be allowed to be present during the tabulation of paper ballots and shall be allowed to see ballots as they are tabulated.

- iv. Scrutineers may contest the approval of votes where they feel the indication of candidate preference is unclear; however, validation of votes is at the discretion of the CEC.
- v. Validation of votes remains the sole discretion of the CEC.
- vi. Scrutineers may not handle the ballots, ballot tabulation sheets, or ballot boxes.
- vii. Scrutineers may be removed from the ballot counting room at the discretion of the CEC.
- viii. Scrutineers may be appointed to pick up campaign materials on behalf of the candidate they represent.

5.45 Election Results

- i. The pending election results shall be announced to the membership no later than 9:00 a.m. on Thursday of Week 5 6, regardless of any active complaints proceedings. If a complaint which may result in a change to the pending election results is still in process, then notice shall be given to the membership that the pending results are subject to a trial of the Election Accountability Board.
- ii. Election results are not official until ratified by motion at a the subsequent UWSA General Meeting or meeting of the UWSA Board of Directors.
- iii. Election results shall not be ratified until all complaints proceedings of the Election Accountability Board are resolved.

5.46 Polling Officers

i. Selection:

- a. Polling officers shall be hired and trained by the CEC in accordance with UWSA Policy and with support from the UWSA Administration Department and Chief Operating Officer.
- b. Polling officer terms shall commence upon appointment by the CEC and shall expire at the close of the given election cycle.
- c. Polling officers shall be paid an honourarium that compensates hours served at a living wage, as determined by UWSA policy.
- ii. Applications from the following people shall not be considered:
 - a. Current Directors and Executive Directors of the UWSA;
 - b. Former Executive Directors of the UWSA whose term ended within the last five (5) years;
 - c. Current Part-time or Full-time employees of the UWSA;
 - d. Employees of any UWSA partner organization.

5.47 Polling

i. The CEC shall work in coordination with the Events Department to set up all physical polls. Physical polls shall be managed by the CEC and staffed by

approved polling officers. The General Manager shall work in coordination with the Events Department to set up and manage in-person polling stations.

- ii. The General Manager shall work in coordination with the CEC to set up and manage electronic polls.
- iii. In all UWSA elections, a polling station shall be assigned to Riddell Hall, Merchants Corner, and Richardson College on all three days of voting.
- iv. There shall be a polling station at Buhler Centre and Wii Chiiwaakanak Station at least one voting day per election.
- v. In-person physical polls shall be open between 9:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. on the Monday, Tuesday, and Wednesday of Week-5 6.
- vi. The CEC shall work in coordination with the Administration Department to set up all online polls. Online polls shall be managed by the CEC.
- vii. Online polls shall be open from 9:00 a.m. Monday to of Week 6 until 6:00 p.m. Wednesday of Week 5 6 inclusive.

5.48 Supplemental Rules

- i. Supplemental rules may not contradict the by-laws and policies of the UWSA.
- ii. Supplemental rules may be created by the CEC and/or the ECFs to address issues that arise during the course of an election. All supplemental rules are subject to review and approval by the EAB.
- iii. Election campaign participants shall not be penalized for violating supplemental rules if the violation occurred before the rule was approved and circulated to participants; however, all election campaign participants are bound by supplemental rules once approved and may be required to change behaviours and campaign strategies upon the circulation of supplemental rules.
- iv. Supplemental rules shall last the duration of the election cycle in which they are approved and expire with the ratification of election results.

Section D – Election Violations, Complaints, and Accountability

5.49 Election Violations and Complaints

- i. Election campaign participants are required to act reasonably, respectfully, and in good faith. This includes ensuring that they:
 - a. Are aware of, understand, and comply with all Election Rules;
 - b. Abide by the UWSA Code of Conduct, Acknowledgement of Responsibility, and all UWSA By-laws and Policies;
 - c. Abide by the Campaign Guidelines outlined in these by-laws;
 - d. Comply with University of Winnipeg Policies and Procedures;
 - e. Comply with local, provincial, and federal laws.
- ii. Directors or Executives running for election or re-election shall not violate their Acknowledgement of Responsibility waivers, campaign based on Closed Session

information, nor use their position with the UWSA or UWSA resources to campaign to an unfair advantage.

- iii. The CEC and ECFs are is empowered to investigate and rule upon any breach of the Election Rules, whether submitted by complaint or by self-initiated investigation in accordance with the Election Complaints and Anti-Harassment Policy.
- iv. Complaints of discriminatory or harassing conduct shall be managed by the ECFs and/or the EAB in accordance with the Elections Anti-Harassment Policy.

5.50 Violation Consequences and Disqualification

- i. Consequences may only be applied against election campaign participants by the Election Accountability Board in accordance with the Election Complaints Policy and Election Anti-Harassment Policy.
- ii. The CEC is empowered to impose consequences on campaigns found to have violated election rules in accordance with the Elections Complaints and Anti-Harassment Policy.
- iii. Candidates for election may be disqualified prior to the commencement of the voting period by removal from the ballot, or after the voting period has commenced or expired by retroactive disqualification.
- iv. If a candidate who is retroactively disqualified received the most votes in a contest race, the candidate with the next highest number of votes shall be declared the winner of that race. If a candidate is retroactively disqualified in an uncontested race, the seat shall remain vacant.
- v. Disqualified candidates shall be barred from participating in the remainder of the given election cycle, where applicable, and shall not qualify for election or appointment to the Board of Directors or its subcommittees until one (1) additional election cycle has elapsed.

5.51 Election Accountability Board (EAB)

- i. The Election Accountability Board works alongside the Chief Election Commissioner and the Election Campaign Facilitators to ensure the validity, integrity, and fairness of UWSA Elections and Referenda.
- ii. The Election Accountability Board shall be composed of the following voting members:
 - a. The Chair of the Board of Directors
 - b. The Chief Operating Officer
 - c. One UWSA Staff Person as appointed by the Chief Operating Officer.
- iii. The General Manager shall be the non-voting chair of the Election Accountability Board.
- iv. The Election Accountability Board shall be composed of all executive and directors of the Board of Directors and all students at large appointed to committees of the board that are not election campaign participants during the election cycle in question. The Chair of the Board of Directors shall be the Chair of the EAB.

- v. All those who qualify for the EAB shall be interviewed by the Chair prior to attending a hearing of the EAB to ensure they do not have a conflict of interest (as per the Conflict of Interest Policy) with a party involved in the complaint in question.
- vi. Quorum for a meeting of the Election Accountability Board shall be two voting members. five (5) voting members of the EAB. At least three (3) UWSA Directors must be present at a meeting of the EAB in order for it to meet quorum.
- vii. A secretary of the EAB shall be chosen by and from its membership at the commencement of each meeting.
- viii. At their discretion, the EAB may invite non-voting advisories to attend their sessions, including, but not limited to, the CEC, the ECFs, the Chief Operating Officer, Campus or Community Elders, and/or University of Winnipeg Human Rights Officers.
- ix. Sessions of the EAB shall be held in closed session, however, a public report of each session shall be made available in accordance with the policies of the UWSA.
- x. Minutes of the EAB shall be submitted to the Board of Directors for information in closed session at its first meeting following the close of the given election cycle.
- xi. The proceedings of the EAB shall be held in accordance with UWSA policies, including the UWSA Rules of Order and the Election Complaints and Policy and Election Anti-Harassment Policy.
- xii. The EAB shall make every reasonable effort to hold a hearing and deliver a ruling within 48-hours of receiving a complaint.
- xiii. In order to ensure the timeliness of its proceedings, the EAB may hold meetings by virtual or teleconference platform, or otherwise arrange for an electronic vote.
- xiv. The EAB shall submit to the UWSA Board of Directors, at the first board meeting or general meeting where the following the ratification of the election results-are ratified, a final report of activities and recommendations in accordance with the Final Election Report By-laws.

Section E – Final Election Report

5.52 Final Election Report

- i. At the first meeting of the UWSA Board of Directors or General Meeting following the ratification of election results close of an election cycle, the CEC, ECFs and Chair of the EAB shall release a joint Final Election Report that includes:
 - a. The report of the CEC including: the number of valid votes, the number of spoiled ballots, and the outcome of each race and referenda; any voter demographic information collected at the polls; all procedural complaints and rulings in accordance with the Election Complaints Policy; and any recommendations for procedural changes or rule amendments.
 - b. The report of the ECFs CEC including: a summary of the All-Candidate's Training and Campaign Preparation Week; a summary of the UWSA Election

Campaign and campaign opportunities; a summary of participant feedback in accordance with the Election Evaluation and Feedback Policy; all conduct complaints and rulings in accordance with the Election Complaints Policy and Election Anti-Harassment Policy; and any recommendations for procedural changes or rule amendments.

c. The report of the EAB including: the number of valid votes, the number of spoiled ballots, and the outcome of each race and referenda; any voter demographic information collected at the polls; a summary of participant feedback in accordance with the Election Intake and Feedback Policy; all supplemental rules approved during the course of the election; all Formal Resolution rulings in accordance with the Election Complaints Policy and Election Anti-Harassment Policy; a list of all EAB members and guests present at each hearing; and any recommendations for procedural changes or rule amendments.

BE IT RESOLVED THAT By-law 6.33 is amended to remove the words in red and add the words in purple as below to read:

5.36 Campaign Materials

- i. All campaign materials shall be developed collaboratively by the candidate and/or by the UWSA, through the UWSA Election Campaign
- ii. Candidates who are wanting campaign materials created by the UWSA shall notify the UWSA Communications Department no later than Tuesday of Week 3.
- iii. Candidates who choose to create their own campaign materials must:
 - a. Follow poster guidelines provided by the UWSA Communications Department;
 - b. Hand in their posters to the UWSA Communications Department no later than Thursday of Week 4. Late submissions will result in postering delays.
- iv. Candidates who choose to create their own campaign materials will receive a \$10 budget for printing at the UWSA Info Booth.

v. UWSA Election Campaign materials shall feature all candidates equally.

vi. Candidates are prohibited from creating or distributing any campaign material not approved by the UWSA Communications Department as UWSA Election Campaign materials.

- vii. The UWSA Communications Department ECFs shall not approve any materials that may damage University of Winnipeg infrastructure or create a physical obstruction.
- viii. The UWSA Communications Department ECFs shall not approve campaign materials that violate the campaign guidelines established in these by-laws.
- ix. UWSA Election Campaign materials must include voting information. including the dates and times of the polls, poll locations, and a digital voting summary approved by the CEC.
- **x.** The CEC ECFs shall be responsible for coordinating with the UWSA Events and Communications Department for the hanging of all posters and banners. Participants are prohibited from hanging campaign materials.

xi. All election campaign participants shall have equal access to distributable campaign materials subject to the printing caps listed elsewhere in these by-laws. Distributable campaign materials shall be stored in a UWSA Election Campaign Office to which all election campaign participants have access for Weeks 3-5 of the given election cycle.

xii. Posters

a. UWSA Election Campaign posters must adhere to the UWSA and University of Winnipeg poster policies.

b. Posters may be no larger than 11x17 inches each.

c. There is a limit of 15 posters per person/group placed across campus bulletin boards as per <u>University of Winnipeg Poster Guidelines</u>

Banners

- e. UWSA Election Campaign Banners shall be general voting promotions and shall not include specific candidate information.
- f. Banner sizes, locations, placement, and removal shall be negotiated with the University of Winnipeg Communications Offices and University of Winnipeg Facilities by the CEC ECFs and the UWSA Events and Communications Department.

xiv. Distributable Campaign Materials

- a. The UWSA Election Campaign should be cognizant of the environmental impact of printing paper campaign materials. large quantities of handbills and shall adhere to the same sustainable printing regulations outlined in the UWSA Poster Policy. Campaigns shall be limited to the following caps on handbills:
 - 1. Candidates for Director, Senator, or Regent seats are entitled to 200 total handbills for a given election.
 - 2. Candidates for Executive Director seats and Referenda Sides are entitled to 500 total handbills for a given election.
- b. No handbill may exceed 4.25x5.5 inches.
- c. Handbills may not be affixed to any bulletin board, wall, or other surface.
- d. Font size may be no smaller than 12pt as recommended by the Canadian National Institute for the Blind.

BE IT RESOLVED THAT By-laws 5.18, 5.34, and 5.35 are amended to remove the words in red and add the words in purple as below to read:

5.18 Slate

Means two (2) or more candidates who are members of a single campaign, each running for a different position. Only Executive Slates are allowed prohibited under the UWSA by-laws.

5.34 Campaigning (Week 4 & Week 5)

- viii. Collusion between candidates for election will not be tolerated, including:
 - a. Promoting one or more candidates as part of an election slate;
 - b. Making statements that a reasonable person could interpret as linking two

candidates as members of a joint slate for election;

c. Campaigning on behalf of another candidate.

- 5.35 Election Executive Slates
- i. Each Executive Candidate who wishes to register with an Executive Slate must indicate this to the CEC and General Manager via email or in writing before 4 p.m. on Thursday of Week 3 (All Candidates Training and Preparation Week).
- ii. Candidates for Executive Directorships may only participate on an Executive Slate with other candidates for Executive Directorships.
- iii. Executive Slate names must be approved by the CEC and General Manager.
- iv. Executive Slate names may not reflect those of established political parties.
- v. Executive Candidates may only be on one executive slate.
- vi. Candidates for Board of Regents Student Representative and Senate Student Representative may not form or participate in slates.
- vii. Candidates for non-Executive Director positions may not form or participate in Executive Slates.
- viii. Collusion between Candidates for non-Executive Director positions will not be tolerated, including:
 - a. Promoting one or more candidates as part of a slate;
 - b. Making statements that a reasonable person could interpret as linking two

candidates as members of a joint slate;

c. Campaigning on behalf of another candidate.

6.4 Duties of the President

i. The President is the Chief Executive Officer of the UWSA, and is charged with overseeing the day-to-day management and supervision of the affairs and operations of the UWSA on behalf of the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors.

6.4 Duties of the President

i. The President is the Chief Executive Officer of the UWSA, and is charged with setting the strategic direction of the UWSA in consultation with the Executive Committee of the Board of Directors.

BE IT RESOLVED THAT By-laws 4.2, and 5.28 are amended to remove the words in red and add the words in purple as below to read:

4.2 Terms of Office

- i. The term of office of all directors shall be a one-year term, from May 1st through to April 30th with the following exceptions:
 - a. The two Vice Presidents shall hold staggered two-year terms. The term of office for the Vice President External Affairs and Vice President Student Affairs shall commence May 1st of the year they are elected through to April 30th of the second calendar year from the commencement date. The Vice Presidents shall be elected on opposite years so that one Vice Presidential seat is open in each General Election.
 - b. The term of office for the Indigenous Students Directors shall be determined by the constitution of the Indigenous Students' Association and in accordance with the Corporations Act (Manitoba).
 - c. The term of office for the Menno Simons College Director shall be determined by the constitution of the Menno Simons College Student Association and in accordance with the Corporations Act (Manitoba).
 - d. The term of office for the Urban and Inner-City Campus Director shall be determined by the constitution of the Urban and Inner-City Students Association and in accordance with the Corporations Act (Manitoba).
 - e. The Emerging Leader Directors shall hold staggered two-year terms. The term of office for the Emerging Leader Directors shall commence May 1st of the year they are elected through to April 30th of the second calendar year from the commencement date.

5.28 Annual General Election and By-Election

- i. In the winter term of each University of Winnipeg academic year there will be a General Election for available UWSA Executive and Director positions, University of Winnipeg Senate seats, and University of Winnipeg Board of Regents seats.
- ii. One (1) seat on the University of Winnipeg Board of Regents will be open for election annually.
- iii. The number of University of Winnipeg Senate seats open for election annually shall be determined in consultation with the University Secretary and in accordance with the University of Winnipeg Act.
 - a. One UWSA Senate seat shall be reserved for each of the following:
 - 1. The UWSA President;
 - 2. The Vice President External Affairs;
 - 3. The Vice President Student Affairs;
 - 4. The PACE Director;
 - 5. A Graduate Student.
- iv. The Vice President External Affairs and Vice President Student Affairs shall be elected on a two-year schedule such that the Vice President External Affairs is elected in Cycle A and the Vice President Student Affairs is elected in Cycle B.
- v. The Emerging Leader Directors shall be elected on a two-year schedule where two (2) of the four (4) positions are open for election in each cycle.
- vi. The two-year schedule shall be as follows:
 - a. Cycle A (which shall be the first year in each two-year General Election schedule) the following directors Two (2) Emerging Leader Directors shall be elected for two-year terms:

1. Vice President External Affairs

2.—Two (2) Emerging Leader Directors

- b. Cycle B (which shall be the second year in each two-year General Election schedule) the following directors Two (2) Emerging Leader Directors shall be elected for two-year terms:
 - 1. Vice President Student Affairs
 - 2. Two (2) Emerging Leader Directors
- c. In both Cycle A and Cycle B, all other executive and directors excepting those identified in By-law 4.2.i shall be elected to one-year terms.
- d. In the pilot year of the two-year General Election schedule, Cycle A candidates shall be elected for one-year terms and Cycle B candidates shall be elected for two-year terms.
- e. Where a position is unfilled in a General Election or By-Election, or is vacated before the expiration of its term, it shall be open for election in the subsequent General Election or By-Election. The duration of the term of the person elected to fill such a vacancy shall be the balance of the unexpired term such that the filled position's term shall terminate in the standard timeline if the position had not been vacated.

- vii. By-Elections shall be held in the event of vacancies in the Fall Term.
- viii. Participation in elections and referenda as committee members, candidates, volunteers, and scrutineers is limited to members of the UWSA as determined by these by-laws.
 Members must be 18 years of age or older to participate in UWSA elections.

BE IT RESOLVED THAT By-law 6.33 is amended to remove the words in red and add the words in purple as below to read:

6.33 Meetings of Directors

i. Meetings of the Directors shall be held at such time and place as are from time to time decided by the Chair of the Board of Directors and the Secretary of the Board of Directors after consulting the schedules of the Directors. These meetings shall be subject to the approval of the Board of Directors. No meeting of any UWSA Committee or of the Board of Directors shall be valid if it occurs by telephone, Internet, electronic mail or similar device.

Bylaw II.Section 14.01 Election Complaint and Anti- HarassmentPolicy

Replaces: 14.01 Elections Complaint Policy

Replaces: 14.02 Elections Anti-Harassment Policy

Preamble

The UWSA is committed to building a democratic process in which student leaders can learn collaborative governance, build their independent leadership styles, and reach their full potential in an environment free from discrimination and harassment. The UWSA acknowledges that elections are often sites of healthy disagreement and conflict which, if navigated safely, can provide learning opportunities for all parties while either resolving the conflict before harm is caused or repairing harm collaboratively. While some conflicts can be managed at the interpersonal level, others require additional resources and supports.

The UWSA also acknowledges that elections are often sites of conflict that escalates beyond healthy disagreement and that the harm resulting from this escalation disproportionately targets participants with one or multiple protected characteristics under *The Manitoba Human Rights Code*.

The UWSA does not condone and will not tolerate behavior that threatens the safety of election participants, students, staff, and members of the campus community, and is committed to shifting its political culture away from combative partisanship and toward community-centric leadership, personal responsibility, and collaborative governance.

Policy Statement

Every election participant has the right to a fair and transparent election process in accordance with the by-laws and policies of the UWSA. When a violation of an election rule occurs, any UWSA member, staff person, or election participant may engage the complaints and anti-harassment procedures outlined herein.

Every election participant additionally has a right to freedom from:

- Harassment or discrimination by another election participant, student, an election manager, or any other member of the campus community;
- Harassment or discrimination by a person who has a personal relationship with another election participant;
- Targeted behaviour, in violation of the campaign guideline by-laws, meant to undermine an election participant's success in the vote;
- Sexual solicitations or advances made by a person in a position to grant or deny a service or benefit to the election participant, under threat of reprisal, or where the person making the solicitation or advance knows or ought reasonably to know that it is unwelcome;

It is a violation of this policy to knowingly make a false complaint or to provide false information about a complaint.

Violations of the Positive Space Policy by or against an election participant in the course of an election cycle shall be managed in accordance with the procedures herein.

Compliance

All UWSA Staff, election managers, and election participants are required to comply with this policy.

Enforcement

The election management team, including the General Manager, the Chief Election Commissioner, and the Election Accountability Board are responsible for the enforcement of this policy.

Definitions

Appeal:

An appeal occurs when a complainant escalates a complaint directly to the Election Accountability Board in accordance with this policy.

Complaint:

A complaint is triggered under this policy when a violation of the election rules is reported to an election manager for resolution. Any UWSA member, staff person, and/or election participant may file a

complaint. Independent investigations conducted by an election manager, and issues resolved by Independent Resolution, shall also be considered a complaint for the purposes of this policy.

- a. Procedural complaints are alleged rule violations regarding electoral logistics such as nominations or polling. The defendant in a procedural complaint will usually be an election manager or polling officer.
- b. Conduct complaints are alleged rule violations by an election participant. The defendant in a conduct complaint will usually be an election participant. Complaints regarding discrimination and harassment are usually conduct complaints.

Complainant: The party that initiates a complaint.

Defendant:

The party accused of an election rule violation in an issued complaint.

Discrimination:

Discrimination is differential treatment on the basis of any of the following protected characteristics under *The Manitoba Human Rights Code*: ancestry, including colour and perceived race; nationality or national origin; ethnic background or origin; religion, creed, or religious belief; religious association or religious activity; age; sex, including sex-determined characteristics or circumstances, such as pregnancy, the possibility of pregnancy, or circumstances related to pregnancy; gender identity; sexual orientation; marital or family status; source of income; political belief; political association or political activity; physical or mental disability or related characteristics or circumstances, including reliance on a service animal, a wheelchair, or any other remedial appliance or device; social disadvantage.

Election cycle:

The six (6) week election cycle as it is determined by the UWSA By-laws.

Election manager:

The Chief Elections Commissioner ("CEC"), and/or the UWSA General Manager.

Election participant:

Means all accepted candidates and referendum volunteers participating in a given election cycle.

Harassment:

A course of vexatious comments or conduct that is known or should reasonably be known to be unwelcome. Harassment includes, but is not limited to the following:

- Unwelcome or threatening remarks, jokes, gestures, innuendos, slurs or taunts;
- Following, doxing, or stalking;

- Unwelcome sexual remarks, invitations or requests, whether indirect or explicit;
- Display of posters or literature which are discriminatory or otherwise unfairly target an election participant;
- Condescending, paternalistic or patronizing behaviour that undermines self-respect or dignity;
- Vandalism;
- Abuse of authority which undermines performance, threatens electoral performance, or causes intimidation;
- Assault.

Procedure

Steps to initiate a procedural complaint:

5.1 Complainant Procedure:

- 1. The complainant shall contact the CEC by email, phone, or in-person and submit their complaint.
- 2. The complainant shall, wherever possible, include the following information in their complaint:
 - a. Date/time of alleged infractions
 - b. Summary of the alleged infraction
 - c. The rule allegedly violated
 - d. Desired outcome
- 3. The CEC and complainant shall negotiate a resolution.
- 4. If a resolution cannot be reached by consensus, the CEC shall report the complaint to the EAB for formal resolution.
- 5. If the CEC does not report an unresolved procedural complaint to the EAB, or if the complainant does not feel safe to approach the CEC directly, the complainant may appeal to the EAB directly.
 - a. In such cases the complainant shall submit their complaint to the Chair of the EAB and include a statement regarding any negotiation that took place with the CEC.

Election Management Procedure:

- 1. The CEC shall document the complaint including:
 - a. Date/time complaint was delivered
 - b. Date/time of alleged infraction
 - c. Summary of the alleged infraction
 - d. The rule allegedly violated
 - e. The resolution to the complaint

2. If the complaint cannot be resolved through discussion between the CEC and the complainant, the CEC shall report the complaint, including all documentation submitted by the complainant, to the EAB for deliberation and ruling.

Steps to initiate a conduct complaint:

5.2 Complainant Procedure:

STEP 1.

ASSESS – the complainant shall assess the situation to determine which resolution style to engage:

- a. INDEPENDENT RESOLUTION Independent Resolution encourages creative leadership and conflict resolution and should be engaged in instances where the complainant feels safe to approach the defendant and where Independent Resolution is likely to resolve the conduct before it has an impact on the fairness of the election and/or prevent further harm to the complainant. *To engage Independent Resolution skip to step 2.*
- b. SUPPORTED MEDIATION Supported Mediation encourages collaborative conflict resolution and should be engaged in instances in which Supported Mediation is likely to resolve the conduct, repair any harm caused to the fairness of the election, and/or prevent further harm to the complainant. Supported Mediation may result in consequences for campaigns including, but not limited to, campaign restrictions, disqualification from election, and further reporting to appropriate authorities. *To engage Supported Mediation skip to step 3.*
- c. FORMAL RESOLUTION Formal Resolution manages instances in which Informal Resolution and Supported Mediation are unlikely to resolve the conduct, repair the fairness of the election, and/or prevent further harm to the complainant. Formal Resolution may result in consequences for campaigns including, but not limited to, campaign restrictions, disqualification from election, and further reporting to appropriate authorities. In circumstances in which a complaint involves the behavior or ruling of the CEC, or in instances in which the CEC chooses not to escalate a complaint to Formal Resolution to the dissatisfaction of the complainant, the complainant may appeal directly to the Chair of the EAB for Formal Resolution. *To engage Formal Resolution skip to step 4*.

STEP 2.

INDEPENDENT RESOLUTION – the complainant shall approach the defendant directly, alert them to the alleged rule violation, and the two parties shall collaboratively negotiate a resolution.

- a. The complainant shall submit a record of the encounter(s), including the date(s)/time(s) of the incident, the parties involved, and the resolution, to the CEC.
- b. Complainants or defendants who are unsatisfied with the results of Independent Resolution, may approach the CEC for Supported Mediation.

STEP 3.

SUPPORTED MEDIATION – the complainant shall report their complaint to the CEC. The CEC shall instigate a Supported Mediation session or escalate the complaint to Formal Resolution where mediation is unviable.

- a. Where possible, the complainant shall include in their complaint: the date(s)/time(s) of the incident, the parties involved, and the rule allegedly violated.
- b. Complainants who are unsatisfied with the results of Supported Mediation or are unsatisfied that the CEC has chosen not to escalate a complaint to Formal Resolution, may appeal to the EAB for Formal Resolution.

STEP 4.

FORMAL RESOLUTION – the complainant shall submit a record of events and statements from their perspective including the outcome they feel will resolve the conduct and any supplemental documentation to the Chair of the EAB. The Chair of the EAB shall respond with next steps.

5.3 Election Management Procedure:

STEP 1.

ASSESS – the election manager shall assess the situation to determine the appropriate resolution style:

- a. INDEPENDENT RESOLUTION Independent Resolution occurs between a complainant and defendant and is reported to the CEC for the record. *If you have received a report of Independent Resolution, skip to step 2.*
- SUPPORTED MEDIATION Supported Mediation encourages collaborative conflict resolution and should be engaged in instances in which Supported Mediation is likely to resolve the conduct, repair unfairness caused in the election, and prevent further harm to the complainant. Supported Mediation may result in consequences for defendants including, but not limited to, campaign restrictions, disqualification from election, and further reporting to appropriate authorities. Candidates will submit a complaint directly to the CEC for

Supported Mediation. *If you have received a direct complaint, skip to step 3.*

c. FORMAL RESOLUTION – Formal Resolution manages instances in which Informal Resolution and Supported Mediation are unlikely to resolve the conduct, repair the fairness of the election, and/or prevent further harm to the complainant. Formal Resolution additionally manages instances in which Supported Mediation has failed to resolve a complaint. Formal Resolution may result in consequences for defendants including, but not limited to, campaign restrictions, disqualification from election, and further reporting to appropriate authorities. *If you have determined that mediation is not viable, or if attempted mediation was unsuccessful, skip to step 4.*

STEP 2.

INDEPENDENT RESOLUTION – Upon receiving a report of an independently resolved complaint, the CEC shall document the details of the complaint for the Final Election Report including any resolution reached. Where the CEC does not believe the resolution adequately restores the fairness of the election, they may escalate the complaint to Supported Mediation or Formal Resolution.

STEP 3.

SUPPORTED MEDIATION - The CEC shall contact the defendant to interview them on their perspective, determine whether a Supported Mediation session between the complainant and defendant is possible, and/or will escalate the complaint to Formal Resolution where resolution through Supported Mediation is deemed unsafe or unsatisfactory.

- a. The CEC shall act as a mediator in all Supported Mediation sessions and may invite additional supports including, but not limited to, professional mediators, Elders, or advocates. Mediations shall follow the basic five-step mediation process including:
 - i. Introduction: The CEC introduces the process and explains how each step will work.
 - ii. Sharing of perspective: The complainant and defendant each share their perspective. The CEC shall ensure that each has the chance to speak to their experience without interruption.
 - iii. Identifying the Main Issue: The CEC shall state, based on the testimonies, what they believe the main issue to be and provide feedback to both participants. Both the complainant and defendant speak to their perspective on the issue.
 - iv. Brainstorming Resolutions: The CEC shall lead a collaborative brainstorming session to generate ideas that could restore the fairness of the election and/or repair harm. The ideas may

include, but are not limited to, voluntarily agreed to consequences or new boundaries for conduct.

- v. Consensus: The group agrees to a course of action. Where consensus cannot be reached, the CEC shall engage Formal Resolution.
- b. Under Supported Mediation, the CEC shall document the complaint and process including:
 - i. The date/time the complaint was submitted;
 - ii. The date/time of the incident in question;
 - iii. A statement from the complainant including the election rule(s) allegedly violated; and any supplemental documentation.
 - iv. A statement from the defendant including their perspective on the allegation and any supplemental documentation.
 - v. The resolution achieved through Supported Mediation.

STEP 4.

FORMAL RESOLUTION - The CEC shall submit the complaint in writing to the Chair of the EAB, including:

- i. The date/time the complaint was submitted;
- ii. A record of events and statements by the complainant;
- iii. The outcome the complainant feels would resolve the conduct;
- iv. A record of events and statements by the defendant;
- v. The outcome the defendant feels is fair;
- vi. Attempted steps to resolve the complaint; and
- vii. Any relevant supplemental documents or materials.

5.4 Election Accountability Board Procedure:

STEP 1.

CALL A HEARING – Upon receipt of a complaint, the Chair of the EAB shall call a hearing in accordance with the by-laws.

STEP 2.

COLLECT STATEMENTS – The Chair of the EAB shall contact all parties to the complaint to alert them of the date/time of the hearing and shall provide them with a copy of the complaint for their review. The Chair of the EAB shall provide parties to the complaint with a timeline within which they may submit supplemental statements for the hearing.

STEP 3.

SET PARAMETERS FOR THE HEARING – At their discretion, the EAB may choose to interview the parties involved in the complaint and/or ask election

managers to be present at the hearing. The EAB may invite other parties to the hearing in accordance with the by-laws. The EAB shall appoint a secretary from their membership to record the minutes of the hearing in accordance with the by-laws.

STEP 4.

DELIBERATE – The EAB shall deliberate on all gathered information and shall use a balance of probabilities threshold to determine the responsibility of the defendant.

STEP 5.

RESOLVE – The EAB shall determine an appropriate resolution that will best maintain the integrity, safety, and fairness of the UWSA Elections. Resolutions may include, but are not limited to:

- a. No direct action;
- b. Verbal or written warnings;
- c. Consequences including campaign restrictions, removal from the ballot, and/or disqualification from election;
- d. Recommendations to the Board of Directors for amendments to the UWSA Election By-laws and Policies.

STEP 6.

DOCUMENT AND REPORT – The Chair of the EAB shall document the hearing including:

- a. A summary of the complaint;
- b. Any supplemental statements submitted to the EAB;
- c. A summary of the considerations of the EAB;
- d. The ruling of the EAB;
- e. The justification for the ruling; and
- f. The date/time of the ruling.

The report shall be publicly posted to the UWSA website and on the door of the CEC office.

RULINGS – Rulings of the EAB are final and cannot be appealed.

DISMISSAL – At their discretion, the EAB may choose not to hear a complaint. In such situations, the complaint shall be ruled invalid and the Chair of the EAB shall provide a report including:

a. A summary of the complaint;

- b. Any supplemental statements submitted to the EAB;
- c. A summary of the considerations of the EAB;
- d. The ruling of the EAB;
- e. The justification for the ruling; and
- f. The date/time of the ruling.

The report shall be publicly posted to the UWSA website and shall be circulated to all parties to the complaint.

FURTHER REPORTING – In all cases in which the EAB reasonably believes discrimination and/or harassment has occurred, the EAB shall direct the Chief Operating Officer to report the case to appropriate authorities, which may include:

- a. A relevant UWSA employee union, the Executive Committee and/or the UWSA Board of Directors;
- b. University of Winnipeg's Human Rights and Diversity Office;
- c. The Manitoba Human Rights Commission;
- d. Legal Authorities.

FINAL ELECTION REPORT – The Chair of the EAB shall create a report of all rulings of the EAB in a given election cycle to be included in the Final Election Report in accordance with the by-laws.

Bylaw III. 14.02 Election Intake and Feedback Policy

Replaces: 14.03 Election Evaluation and Feedback Policy

Preamble

The UWSA is committed to building a democratic process in which students feel encouraged and supported to reach their full potential. Candidate intake allows election managers to ensure they are meeting the accessibility needs of election participants. Feedback from election participants helps to identify the strengths and weaknesses of the electoral process.

This policy governs the evaluation and feedback framework for UWSA elections.

Definitions

Election participant: Means all accepted candidates and referendum volunteers participating in a given election cycle.

Enforcement

The General Manager is responsible for the enforcement of this policy, with support as requested from the Election Accountability Board ("EAB").

Policy Statement

The UWSA is committed to comprehensive election participant intake and regular evaluation of the electoral process to ensure the organization stays compliant with the values of accessibility, anti-oppressive leadership, authentic representation, outreach and engagement, organizational integrity, empathy, and continual reflection.

All election participants shall be invited to participate in an intake process to assess their accessibility needs. All election participants shall be invited to provide evaluation and feedback of UWSA elections following the close of the polls.

Procedure

Intake Assessment:

Following the close of nominations, the General Manager shall conduct an intake assessment with each election participant. Intake assessments shall include questions that help the UWSA understand each election participant's accessibility and training needs. Intake assessments may be performed through survey, meetings, or another format at the discretion of the General Manager.

The General Manager shall share information gathered during the introductory assessments with the CEC and EAB only as needed to create a fair and accessible elections process for every candidate.

Exit Assessment:

Following the close of a given election cycle, the General Manager shall conduct an exit interview with each participant to perform an experiential evaluation. Exit assessments may be performed through survey, meetings, or another format at the discretion of the General Manager.

During the exit assessment, the General Manager shall guide election participants to revisit the needs they identified in the introductory assessment and to provide feedback on the UWSA's response to those needs. Election participants shall also be asked to evaluate the strengths and weaknesses of the elections process overall and to provide any recommendations regarding possible improvements to UWSA elections.

All assessments conducted under this policy shall be confidential to the UWSA, however, a summary report of the assessments and election participant recommendations shall be included in the Final Election Report.

Assessment notes shall be retained by the UWSA in accordance with the UWSA Privacy Policy.

Motion Carries

b. Black History Month Funding Request

Thomas H. gives a presentation on the activities of event hosted for the Black History month:

\$1,000 is needed to fund this event.

Jonathan H. thinks it's great to celebrate other cultures. Sarah A. – great movement and was part of the past black history month event.

Tomiris K. moves:

Be it Resolved that \$1000 be allocated from UWSA Administration to help fund the Black History Month events

Motion Carries

c. Sub-Committee Member Shuffle

Thomas H. explains that new Directors have the chance to join committee's.

Fathma M. joins Campaigns and External Relations (CERC) David D. - By-Law and Policy (B&P) Brie V. – Student Life Committee (SLC) Soban F. & Farwa A. – Finance and Operations (F&O)

Farwa A. moves motion to approve new sub-committee members Motion Carries.

Tomiris K. moves to enter closed session with a 5-minute break returning at 6:57PM

Motion carries

Closed Session

- 8. Consent Agenda
 - a. Minutes
 - i. BOD 221207 CLOSED
- 9. Communications

10. New Business

- a. General Election Investigation Report
- 11. Other Business

Next board meeting: March 15, 2022 – Unless rescheduled due to election

12. Adjournment

Jaspinder D. moves to adjourn at 7:21

Motion carries

In attendance: Chair – Kirt Hayer, UWSA President Member – Umar A., Arts Director Member – Tomiris K., International Students' Co-Director Member – Jonathan H., Vice President External Affairs

Absent: Member – Reza H., Vice President Student Affairs Member – Christine Q., International Students' Co-Director

Staff in attendance: Thomas Hanan, General Manager Scribe – Omowunmi Williams, Admin Assistant Tom Sidebottom, Chief Operating Officer

1) Call to Order

Meeting called to order at 2:37 p.m. following the confirmation of quorum.

2) Approval of the Order of Business

Jonathan H. moves to approve order of business. Motion carries.

- 3) New Business
 - a) Student Group Applications

Tomiris K. moves to approve all the following student groups:

Group Name	Recognize/Affiliated
Deeper Life Campus Fellowship	Affiliated
Wildlife Society	Recognized
Catholic Christian Outreach (CCO)	Affiliated
Rotaract Club	Recognized

UW Esports	Affiliated
Muslin Students' Association	Recognized
UW Applied Computer Science SA	Recognized
Game Studies Society (GSS)	Recognized
Pakistan Student Association (PSA)	Recognized
African-Caribbean Students Association (ACSA)	Recognized
Delight	Recognized
Uwinnipeg Pehchaan-e-Bhangra, UWPB	Recognized

Motion Carries

- b) Student Group Funding Requests
 - i) UW Pre-Dental Club

Looking for \$700 for Merch for the UWPDC executives (6 people) - Tshirts - \$105, Hoodies - \$370, Shipping - \$25. Total = \$500 General meeting- meet n greet with the General UWPDC Members and other students interested in the club: Food (pizza & donuts) - \$200

Tomiris K. moves to approve \$500 for the group. Motion Carries

Applied Computer Science Student Association
 Retroactively asking for \$113 for pizza ordered at an event where over 80 people showed up

Jonathan H. moves to approve \$113 retroactive for the Applied Computer Science Student Association Motion Carries

iii) Drag Students Association
 Asking for \$50:
 \$30 - decorations for tabling to promote events
 \$20 - key fob to access Rainbow Lounge

Tomiris K. Moves to approve \$30 for Drag Student Association for tabling. Motion carries

- iv) Pre-Veterinary ClubAsking for \$35.38 provided a full breakdown of expenses.
- i) Tomiris K. moves to approve \$35.38 for Pre-Veterinary Club Motion Carries
- ii) The Committee is decides to follow up with the following group about clarity, more specifics, frequency of requests, amounts, and dates:
 - a. Global College Student Advisory Council
 - b. Queer Student Association
 - c. UniTea & Drag Association
 - d. JDC West
- 4) Adjournment

Jonathan H. moves to adjourn at 3:20 p.m. Motion carries In attendance: Chair – Kirt Hayer, UWSA President Member – Christine Q., International Students' Co-Director Member – Jonathan H., Vice President External Affairs Member – Umar A., Arts Director

Absent: Member – Reza H., Vice President Student Affairs Member – Tomiris K., International Students' Co-Director

Staff in attendance: Scribe – Thomas Hanan, General Manager Omowunmi Williams, Administrative Assistant Tom Sidebottom, Chief Operating Officer

1) Call to Order

Meeting called to order at 2:06 p.m. following the confirmation of quorum.

2) Approval of the Order of Business

Jonathan H. moves to approve order of business. Motion carries.

- 3) New Business
 - a) Tabled Conference Funding Requests

Kirt H. talked to T. Sidebottom about getting more funding but it is the end of the fiscal year which makes it tight. When April comes Kirt H. will see about putting more funds in.

The committee looks through the applications and when the requested conference is/was. The committee decides to look at only approving up to 50% for the applicants where their conference passed or have the conference this month. If they

have receipts for their conference, then once everyone has been contacted the committee will reassess the remaining funds and distribute.

Amounts requested: Simon D. - \$1000 Wala K. A. - \$800 Aimee T. - \$1000 Gem K. Z. - \$1006.17 Reenat S. - \$850 Damhat Z. - \$1000 Cassidy L. - \$1000 Abrar A. - \$750

Total of requests: \$7406.17

Total Funds available: \$3250

Umar A. moves to approve up 50% of funding request with the presentation of receipts Motion Carries

4) Adjournment

Quorum lost at 2:20PM

Student Senate Caucus 230126

Kirt – Chair Harpreet Singh, David Dokun, Raihan Mahmud, Joshua Haney, Mubarak

With the absence of Reza, Kirt chairs the committee. Kirt shares that Reza believes they should bring up alternative grading again. Harpreet was interested in bringing it back. Kirt shares it was declined before because it was difficult to implement.

The University in 2020 started alternative grading that if you have an F grade it won't reflect on your results, and if you got a bad grade, you could get a standing. In terms of academic probation it is omitted from the high. From the student perspective there is a lot of upsides, administration does worry about academic standards. David D. thinks there is a downside to having alternative grading with people relying on it. There could be restrictions on how much you use.

Joshua – as senators they represent the students, and our concern to help students however way we can.

Mubarak – Not everyone is going to take this matter for granted, and there are students who are really struggling academically, once they get an F and try and get a better grade in that course.

Kirt - Having some form of alternative grading or step toward it that is going to be able to be selling it to the faculty.

Harpreet – It is not about all people using it, but more for those struggling.

Kirt – This is something they would like to present, and will bring up to the next meeting with Colin Russel. As for the senate agenda, there are individual classes for specific religion, but then Indian religions are combined, and well as Asian religions.

David D. – do we have enough students to fill in those blocks, and would we be opening too wide. How did they come up with the religions that have specific classes, and then seeing if there is a meter stick.

Kirt – We don't

Joshua and Mubarak – Doesn't see anything negative about bringing this up.

Harpreet – It can be hard to learn when there are so many religions.

Joshua – has an issue with the business degree requirements, right now you have 2 math choices, economic course or 1301 Math. Is concerned that 1301 is irrelevant math, and is not

economics. Talked to the chair but this has come up in the past, and in the past the were against it because removing it would give them less of an edge and make them less employable. Feels that an accounting requirement would make them more employable. The sense that the faculty is against it, and wants to bring it up to the senators. Feels that the senate tends to side with faculty and not wanting students to raise agenda items.

Kirt H. ends the meeting at 12:40PM

Student Senate Caucus – February 24th, 2023

Attendance: Chairing: Kirt Hayer Member: Josh Haney

Alternative Grading

Kirt has been advised by staff, the registrar and a faculty member that it is very unlikely that it would get passed at this point. It was implemented for specific reasons due to the pandemic; they can try and get it to happen but now that it is 100% in-person classes it is unlikely.

Josh - Do you have to use Alternative Grading when it was happening, or could they retroactively use it? Thinks that just for that period, students might not know if it was available to them. If it can be chosen to use for that period retroactively that would be helpful.

Math Course

Kirt - The registrar said that there is a required account course requirement. Financial accounting and financial management, those don't necessarily have account within them. Josh thinks that's Math 1301 or Econ should be assessed to see real world applications that will help the students.

Religions of India

Kirt met with Religions and Culture department, and they will be getting back to him soon, and will confirm soon if they can create separate courses for each religious.

Executive Committee – Open Session Minutes April 3, 2023

Virtual Meeting due to Covid-19 Pandemic



In attendance: Chair – Kirt Hayer, UWSA President Member – Jonathan H., Vice President External Affairs Member – Christine Q., International Students' Co-Director

Absent: Member – Umar A., Arts Director Member – Tomiris K., International Students' Co-Director

Staff in attendance: Scribe – Thomas Hanan, Admin Assistant Tom Sidebottom, Chief Operating Officer

1) Call to Order

Meeting called to order at 11:19 a.m. following the confirmation of quorum.

2) Approval of the Order of Business

Jonathan H. moves to enter closed session Motion Carries

- 3) New Business
 - a. Legal Fees

Jonathan H. moves to return to open session Motion carries

b. Student Group Funding

Kirt H. resumes as chair and T. Hanan goes through the Student Group Funding requests submitted.

The Committee ask about the amount that the Criminal Justice Student Association raised in donation? They asked for \$2000 and the committee decided to approve \$1000 now.

Christine Q. moves to approve \$1000 for Criminal Justice Student Association Motion carries.

Executive Committee – Open Session Minutes April 3, 2023

Virtual Meeting due to Covid-19 Pandemic



The Game Studies student group had an event on April 1, and provided a breakdown of their costs.

Chrstine Q. moves to approve \$1110 for the Games Studies Student Group Motion carries

UWAnime asked for \$500 for receipts. Due to lack of information the committee decided to approve only the \$150 for gift cards if they are able to provide receipts.

Christine Q. moves to give UWAnime \$150 with valid receipts for Gift Cards Motion carries.

Rotaract Club and Muslim Student Association requested \$150.86 for an event.

Christine Q. moves to approve \$150.86 for Rotaract Club and Muslim Student Association Motion Carries

c. Board of Director End of Term Gift

T. Hanan shares questions and options that Communications department came up with. The Committee decide they would like something with colour, and a hoodie design similar to the UWinnnipeg Hoodies. They discussed other options but settled on a sweater or crewneck shirt.

4) Adjournment

Jonathan H. moves to adjourn the meeting at 11:50am Motion Carries

UWSA Student Indigenous Advisory Circle April 18, 2023

Held Virtually due to Covid Pandemic



In attendance: Amber Balan Kelly Krakalovich Megan Lindell

UWSA Staff: Jonathan Henderson, VPEA Ted Turner, UWSA Special Projects Manager Thomas Hanan, Acting General Manager

1) UWSA Daycare Indigenous Education and Green Space Project

The Daycare is working with the Foundation to ask for more money from the government following the consultations. Anyone from the Circle who want to be more involved are always welcome to reach out.

loulia invited Amber to the last meeting, with the daycare staff in attendance. It seemed they want to train all the Daycare staff to teach indigenous culture to the kids. Amber feels strange about it, and how do you teach that culture in that way for the staff to do it. Megan was also concerned about that and are we going from a pan indigenous perspective or are who's teachings are the focus. Can differ from community to community. Daycare was looking at one of the 7 teachings per week. Instead of having a westernized curriculum, consider having an indigenous elder come in weekly or having someone incorporated into the structure, they can set out some boundaries. This rigid curriculum is not the way indigenous communities operate, and do not have indigenous teachings from non-indigenous staff.

Amber said it is not easy to bring up, and the staff were excited, and best way to appreciate that asking from guidance through a pipe ceremony and having an indigenous elder in the role. Indigenous teachings need to come from indigenous peoples, that's not in the curriculum.

Ted is willing to take this to Ioulia. Amber really loves the daycare, and likes everything that Ioulia does, and she is coming from a good place.

Having staff taught protocol for asking from indigenous communities.

 UWSA Daycare Land Acknowledgement: Amber: The land acknowledgement looks ok, but i think it could be improved by including the traditional names for Cree and Oji-Cree etc.



MOTION OF SUPPORT FOR TRANS STUDENTS

DATE: MARCH 22, 2022

MOVED BY: BRIE VILLENEUVE

UW Anti Trans Rhetoric Summary

UW had installed a process for students to access the usage of their chosen name based on either the application when applying, or an application for a name change through student central over last spring term. Originally, the usage of names was very minuscule that it felt pointless. By the end of October UW had decided to allow students to use their chosen name and not legal, many of which are trans peoples deadnames, on Student ID cards. This was after I had sent a few emails to student central back in September about how ridiculous the forced use of legal names was, and I later learnt students have been advocating for it at least four years.

Since this process of students being able to update their name on file, many of us have been repeatedly deadname from the system, specifically from emails like student finance, recreation services and more. Despite the repeated advocacy and meeting with someone in administration regarding how traumatic being deadnamed can be, this is system has still not been updated. It was not long ago I received an email with my deadname, when it was not necessary.

This experience has only added onto regular struggles we face day-to-day, like being misgendered by staff and students.

More recently UW has really let down the community, by allowing an anti trans speech to be presented from a UW professor, under the vise of academic freedom. The email they sent telling us they would not cancel the event, but that they support the 2SLGBTQ+ community, was incredibly disrespectful. Their statement included the following claims: UW is committed to fostering an environment in which freedom exists to question and discuss issues using a scholarly and respectful approach. Commitment to academic freedom is essential to the pursuit of knowledge in the interest of public good - this is established between UW and its Faculty Association. UW embraces and champions inclusivity of all individuals, and a diversity of expressions and views. UW unreservedly supports all members of their wonderfully diverse community, including those in their 2SLGBTQ+ community. Equity, diversity, and inclusion are fundamental values to the UW. A piece from their long-standing Mission statement that includes the words "we are guided by the knowledge that our primary responsibility is to our



students". Mentions the Canadian Charter of Human Rights and Freedoms, along with their Respectful Working and Learning Environment Policy.

UW has claimed this situation was a difference of opinion. It is incredibly harmful to state that the questioning of trans lives, our life saving healthcare, us simply existing, is some debate to be held. Trans lives are sacred and every step we take for affirming healthcare has multiple informative discussions and best decisions to ensure the right choice is made, just like any other medical procedure.

In response to the presentation and statement, I held a rally for Two-Spirit, Transgender, Non-Binary, and Gender Diverse Safety on campus. UW has claimed to be inclusive and safe; yet our community had to fight against blatant hate speech.

Be it resolved that the UWSA support the continued advocacy efforts of 2SLGBTQIA* Student Directors, Brie Villeneuve, and Transgender/Non-Binary students in voicing formal and direct opposition to UWinnipeg's continued support of, and/or lack of action to stop Anti-Trans Rhetoric in any aspect of academic or broader student experience at UWinnipeg.

Be it further resolved that the UWSA release a statement condemning the UWinnipeg Statement regarding the Anti-Trans Rhetoric on campus and presentation from a member of Faculty in the Dept of Political Science

Be it further resolved that the UWSA continue to directly lobby the UWinnipeg administration so that preferred name options within UWinnipeg's communication and records systems are working properly at all levels before registration starts for the Fall 2023 Term to ensure that students are safe and welcome on campus.